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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements and the stand-alone financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of Derrimon Trading Company Limited (the Company) and its
subsidiaries (together the Group) and the stand-alone financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2019,
and of its consolidated and stand-alone financial performance and its consolidated and stand-alone cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements
of the Jamaican Companies Act (the Act).

What we have audited
Derrimon Trading Company Limited’s consolidated and stand-alone financial statements comprise:

The Group and Company statements of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The Group and Company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2019.

The Group and Company statements of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group and Company statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
these standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and stand-

alone financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Derrimon Trading Company Limited 2019 Auditor's Rep ort



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Our Audit Approach
Audit scope

We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing the risks of material misstatements in the consolidated and
stand-alone financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgments, for example,
in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are
inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls,
including, among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud.

Our 2019 audit was planned and executed having regard to the fact that the operations of the Group remain largely
unchanged from the prior year, except the 100% acquisition of a subsidiary on 6 September 2018.

Our Group audit approach

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the accounting processes and controls, and
the industry in which the Group operates.

The entities of the Group are all located in Jamaica. These entities maintain their own accounting records and report to the
Group through the completion of consolidation packages. One company is audited by other independent accountants and it
has adjusted its year end to report as at 31 December 2019, the effective year end of the Group. Based on the financial
significance of the individual entities and our professional judgment, all the companies were selected for full scope audit
procedures to achieve appropriate coverage on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated and stand- alone financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. Key audit matters are selected
from the matters communicated with the Audit Committee members (those charged with Governance) but are not intended
to represent all matters that were discussed with them. These matters are addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined that the key audit matters to be communicated in our report relate, to the Group financial
statements, as noted below:



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Borrowings

Refer to notes 2 (s) and 29 to the financial statements for management’s disclosures of related accounting policies, judgments
and estimates relating to borrowings.

As at 31 December 2019, long and short-term borrowings inclusive of preference shares and overdraft facilities, and excluding
long term lease liabilities represented $.2.39 Billion (2018 - $1.67 Billion) or 41% (2018 — 41%) of the total assets of the Group.
The Group continues to be highly leveraged.

The Parent Company remains highly leveraged as management continues to strategically use debt financing as the principal
pillar to implement structured growth within the Group.

During the year, management implemented strategies to improve its gross margins, thereby improving its cash flows and its
ability to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Management has also restructured a significant portion of its short term
to long term debt. The Parent Company continues to examine its financing options within the context of its debt management
strategy and review its choices based on the present improving market conditions as well as the risk profile of the Parent
Company.

We reviewed the loan agreements and repayment schedules. We noted that all the loans were being serviced on a timely
basis as per the contractual agreements, principally by predetermined monthly deductions from the Company’'s bank
accounts. We confirmed the balances, reviewed the maturity schedule for repayment, tested the interest calculations and
determined that the total borrowings represented obligations by the Company and Group. We did not identify any negative
correspondence from any financial institutions that indicated that the Company and the Group were in breach of its stipulated
covenants or loan repayment terms. We tested the effectiveness of controls over the timely repayment of loans and other
credit facilities and noted that they are compliant with the various agreements.

We had robust discussions with senior management regarding the growth and expansion strategy using debt as the principal
means of growth and expansion and the ultimate strategy to reduce debt capital over the long term. A downside to this
strategy is the inherent liquidity risk that the cash generating units acquired, may not perform as expected, resulting in the
Company and Group being unable to meet its obligations as they fall due. Management has satisfied the concerns by
providing us with evidence which supports the continued restructuring of a significant portion of its bullet payment short
term debt to long-term syndicated facilities.

Management is mindful of this inherent liquidity risk. However, management is confident that their strategic growth and
expansion plan will continue to perform based on historical performance and anticipated future positive trends, due to the
encouraging economic factors being experienced in the marketplace. Management is of the opinion that adequate
safeguards are in place as they have implemented the necessary policies and procedures including scenario analysis,
alternative payment strategies in the event of cash flow challenges and direct monitoring of the individual borrowings.

We evaluated the performance of the borrowing portfolio subsequent to the end of the reporting period to determine whether
there was a need for any adjustment or whether there were any default or breach of any terms of financial covenants. There
were no adverse findings. We also reviewed legal and bank confirmations and correspondences, and we did not identify any
negative matters or need for adjustment at the time of approval and signing of the audit report by the Board of Directors.

Derrimon Trading Company Limited 2019 Auditor's Rep ort



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Allowance for expected credit loss

Refer to the financial statements for management’s disclosures of related to notes 2 (0) and note 18 accounting policies,
judgments and estimates relating to allowance for expected credit loss (ECL).

As described in Note2 (I) the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating Expected Credit Losses (ECL) as it relates
to its trade receivable balances. As a result of this approach, the Company does not track changes in the credit risks
associated with its individual receivable balances but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. Based on IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, the Company has established a provision matrix for the Company
and Group that is based on its historical credit loss experience, past and current economic circumstances which adjusted for
forward looking factors specific to the debtors.

The process of developing an ECL model requires management to use estimates and judgments which are by their nature
inherently subjective.

In undertaking our audit work relating to the ECL model, we performed the following:

We obtained a deeper understanding of the Company’s and Group implementation process for determining the impact of
the adoption of the ECL model

We evaluated the techniques and methodologies used by the Company and Group to estimate the ECLs of the overall
receivable balances. We assessed their assumptions to ensure alignment and compliance with the requirements of IFRS 9.
We assessed the reasonableness of the methods and associated assumptions used by validating the completeness of the
inputs used to derive the computed loss rates relating to the ECL for trade receivables.

We evaluated the ECL computed impairment provision against the total balances over 90 days, along with known potential
bad debt situations by certain customers to determine whether the ECL calculated figure was reasonable.

We are satisfied that the ECL impairment provision of $32 million that represents 3.3% of the trade receivable balance of
the Company is fairly stated as at 31 December 2019.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Report inclusive of the
Directors’, Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer Reports but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our Auditor's Report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover Other Information, and we do not express any form of
assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information referred
to above when it becomes available and, in doing so, we will consider whether the other information is materially consistent
with the consolidated financial statements or whether knowledge obtained by us from the audit or otherwise, appear to indicate
any material misstatements.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there are any material misstatements therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Responsibilities of management and those charged wi th governance for the consolidated and stand-alone financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRS and with the requirements of the Jamaican Companies Act, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and stand-alone financial statements that are free
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group and
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management

either intends to liquidate the Group, Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s and Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the con solidated and stand-alone financial statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and stand-alone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of reliability but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken based on these consolidated and stand-alone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’ and Company’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves a fair presentation.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and stand-
alone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with the Board of Directors of the Group regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Derrimon Trading Company Limited 2019 Auditor's Rep ort



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the con solidated and stand-alone financial statements (con tinued)

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements of the current period. and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosures about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Jamaican Companies Act, we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept, so far as appears from our examination of those records, and the
accompanying consolidated and stand-alone financial statements are in agreement therewith and give the information
required by the Jamaican Companies Act, in the manner so required.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wilfred McKenley.

Chartered Accountants

27 February 2020
Kingston, Jamaica
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Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2019

Page 1

Revenue

Trading income
Less cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Less operating expenses:
Administrative
Selling & distribution

Operating profit before finance costs
Finance income

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Net profit being total comprehensive income
Net Profit Attributable to:

Shareholders of the company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share

Note

2(h)

11

14

2019 2018
$000 $:000

12,649,017 9,303,460
10,370,183 7,612,427
2,278,834 1,691,033
37,767 66,248
2,316,601 1,757,281
(1,279,414) (1,069,495)
(408,265) (233,718)
(1,687,679) (1,303,213)
628,922 454,068
15,408 -
(298,604) (172,223)
345,726 281,845
(43,018) (4,632)
302,708 277,213
290,744 249,120
11,964 28,093
302,708 277,213

$ $

0.106 0.091




Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Group Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2019

Page 2

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Goodwill

Investments

Intangible assets

Current assets:

Inventories

Receivables

Investments

Taxation recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities:

Payables

Short term loans

Current portion of borrowings
Current portion of lease liability
Taxation payable

Net current assets

Shareholder’s equity

Share capital

Capital reserves

Investment revaluation reserve
Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Non-current liabilities:
Borrowings

Lease liability
Deferred tax liability

Total equity and non-current liabilities

Approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

Derrick Cotterell
Director

2019 2018

Note $000 $000
1t 483,476 457,651
15 1,039,077 -
16 182,120 163,940
s 180,411
16 256,523 233,478
17 1,992,174 1,280,787
18 1,033,069 1,166,946
20 280,599 170,132
6,019 5,999
2 509,627 388,751
3,821,488 3,012,615
22 976,846 1,149,544
23 536,316 736,416
25 122,448 69,636
25 70,601 -
7,472 8,525
1,713,683 1,964,121
2,107,805 1,048,494
4,069,001 2,083,974
27 140,044 140,044
12 94,638 94,638
1 614 614
934,834 820,343
1,170,130 1,055,639
24 163,382 162,597
1,333,512 1,218,236
25 1,731,003 862,658
25 1,000,272 -
4,214 3,080
4,069,001 2,083,974

February 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Earl Rich ards
Director




Derrimon Trading Company Limited
Group Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2019

Page 3

Balance at 1 January 2018
Net profit for 2018, being total
comprehensive income
Dividend payment

Movement during the year

Balance: 31 December 2018
Net profit for 2019, being total
comprehensive income
Dividend payment

Dividends paid by subsidiary tc
non-controlling interest
Movement during the year

Balance: 31 December 2019

Attributable to the Company’s Non-
Shareholders controlling Total
Interests Equity
Share Capital Retained Investment
Capital Reserves Earnings Revaluation
Reserve
$'000 $'000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $°000
140,044 133,053 590,357 614 171,107 1,035,175
- - 249,120 - 28,093 277,213
- - (19,132) - - (19,132)
- (38,415) - - (36,603)  (75,018)
140,044 94,638 820,343 614 162,597 1,218,236
- - 290,744 - 11,964 302,708
- - (27,334) - - (27,334)
(8,538) - - (8,538)
- - (140,381) - (11,179)  (151,560)
140,044 94,638 934,834 614 163,382 1,333,512




Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Group Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2019

Page 4

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net profit before taxation
Taxation paid
Changes in non-cash working capital components:
Depreciation
Depreciation- right of use
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Foreign exchange loss
Non cash adjustments
Inventories
Short-term loans
Receivables
Investments
Taxation recoverable
Payables
Related party balance
Taxation payable
Net cash (used in)/ provided by operating activiti®
Cash flows from Investment activities:
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Right of use
Purchase of fixed assets
Intangible asset
Investments
Net cash used in investment activities
Financing activities:
Loans received during the year
Lease liability
Repayment of loans
Dividends paid
Dividends paid by subsidiary to non-controllingeirdst
Exchange loss on foreign cash balances
Deferred tax liability
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Net cash balances at the beginning of the year

Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Represented by:

Cash on hand
Cash and cash equivalents

*Reclassified for comparative purposes.

2019 * 2018
Note $000 $:000

345,726 281,845

(43,018) (4,632)

15 67,088 83,655
15 96,618 -
(176) (669)

1,134 -

(11,034) (60,615)

(711,387) (446,601)

(200,100) E

133,877 (158,353)

(110,468) -

(20) -

(172,698) 330,348

1,316 -

(1,054) 1,680

(604,196) 26,658

428 1,650

15 (1,135,694) E
15 (84,943) (159,676)
(41,223) -

29,935 (355,000)

(1,231,497) (513,026)

1,017,970 817,456

1,074,016 -
(99,956) (191,806)
(27,334) (19,132)
(8,538) -
(723) .

1,134 3,080

1,956,569 609,598

120,876 123,230

388,751 265,521

509,627 388,751

307,729 51,303

21 201,898 337,448
509,627 388,751




Derrimon Trading Company Limited
Company Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2019

Page 5

Revenue

Trading income
Less cost of sales
Gross profit
Other income

Less operating expenses:
Administrative
Selling & distribution

Operating profit before finance costs
Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Net profit

Other comprehensive income, net of taxes
Total comprehensive income

Earnings per share

Note

2(h)

11

14

2019 2018
$:000 $:000
11,637,878 8,759,236
9,608,914 7,244,705
2,028,964 1,514,531
26,864 44,406
2,055,828 1,558,937
(1,098,451) (964,031)
(404,861) (228,106)
(1,503,312) (1,192,137)
552,516 366,800
(297,576) (170,376)
254,940 196,424
(27,538) -
227,402 196,424
227,402 196,424
$ $
0.083 0.072




Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Company Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2019

Page 6

ASSETS
Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment

Right of use assets

Goodwill

Deferred tax asset

Investment in subsidiaries and joint venture

Current assets:

Inventories

Investment

Receivables

Taxation recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities:

Payables

Short term loans

Current portion of borrowings
Current portion of lease liability

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

EQUITY

Share capital

Capital reserves

Investment revaluation reserve
Retained earnings

Non-current liability:

Borrowings

Lease liability

Total equity and non-current liabilities
* Reclassified for comparative purposes

Approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

Derrick Cotterell
Director

Note

15
15
16

10

17
20
18

21

22
23
25

27
12

25
25

Earl Richards
Director

2019 2018

$'000 $'000
385,375 380,199
945,179 -
33,220 33,220
5 -
942,541 *942,073
1,750,852 1,111,289
31,330 *15,736
845,234 953,980
1,347 -
491,546 298,539
3,120,309 2,363,808
902,850 1,090,545
535,000 736,416
119,629 67,105
66,302 -
1,623,781 1,894,066
1,496,528 469,742
3,802,848 1,840,970
140,044 140,044
94,638 94,638
614 614
947,982 747,914
1,183,278 983,210
1,711,454 857,760
908,116 -
3,802,848 1,840,970

February 2020 signed on its behalf by:




Derrimon Trading Company Limited
Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2019

Page 7

Share Retained Investment Capital Total
Capital Earnings Revaluation Reserves
Reserve

$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $:000
Balance at 31 December 2016 140,044 366,307 614 57,503 564,468
Net profit for 2017 - 204,315 - - 204,315
Realised gains on disposal of shares = - - 39,103 39,103
Increase in capital reserve - - - 36,446 36,446
Balance at 31 December 2017 140,044 570,622 614 133,052 844,332
Net profit for 2018 - 196,424 - - 196,424
Dividends - (19,132) - - (19,132)
Decrease in capital reserve - - - (38,414) (38,414)
Net profit for 2019 - 227,402 - - 227,402
Dividends - (27,334) - - (27,334)
Balance at 31 December 2019 140,044 947,982 614 94,638 1,183,278




Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Company Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2019

Page 8

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before taxation

Items not affecting cash resources:
Finance costs paid
Taxation paid
Depreciation
Depreciation — right of use
Non-cash adjustments
Deferred tax
Gain on sale of fixed assets

Operating income before changes in operating assedsd liabilities

Changes in non-cash working capital components:
Inventories
Taxation recoverable
Receivables
Current portion — long term loans
Short term -loans
Payables
Taxation payable

Cash (used in)/generated by operations
Finance costs

Net cash used in operating activities
Investment activities:
Investments
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and egei
Finance lease — right of use
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investment activities
Financing activities:
Loans received during the year
Repayment of loans
Finance lease
Deferred tax asset
Dividends paid
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Net cash balances at the beginning of the year
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Represented by:

Cash on hand
Cash and cash equivalents

*Certain 2018 figures reclassified for comparative purposes.

Note

15
15

15
15

21
26

2019 * 2018
$000 $000

254,940 196,424
297,576 170,376
(27,538) -
51,967 49,498
90,918 :
(8,051) (74,313)
- (669)

659,812 341,316
(639,563) (400,694)

(1,348) .
108,746 (281,190)
(201,416) :
(187,697) 457,690
(921,278) (224,194)

(261,466) 117,122
(297,576) (170,376)
(559,042) (53,254)
(16,061) (394,727)
1,650

(1,036,097) -
(49,091) (59,120)
(1,101,249) (452,197)
998,169 817,456
(91,950) (189,422)
974,418 :
(5) -
(27,334) (19,133)
1,853,298 608,901
193,007 103,450
298,539 195,089
491,546 298,539
304,916 298,539
186,630 -
491,546 298,539
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Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2019

1. IDENTIFICATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Derrimon Trading Company Limited (“the Company”)ascompany limited by shares, incorporated
and domiciled in Jamaica. The Company registerdeas located at 233-235 Marcus Garvey Drive,
Kingston 11. The Company was incorporated in 1998.

The principal activities of the Company include theolesale and bulk distribution of household and

food items inclusive of meat products, chilled amdbient beverages and the retailing of those and
other food items and meat products through theatiper of a chain of outlets and supermarkets. The
Company’s subsidiaries are involved in manufactuoh flavours and fragrances along with wooden

pallets.

Derrimon Trading Company Limited together withstgsidiaries is referred to as the “Group”.

Effective December 17, 2013, the Company’s shaere \isted on the Junior Market of the Jamaica
Stock Exchange (JSE).

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in thegaration of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently aghbe all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared inrdaaoe with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) using the accounting policiesatlibed herein.

Going concern

The preparation of financial statements in accardamith IFRS assumes that the Company and
Group will continue in operation for the foreseealfuture. This means, in part, that the
statements of profit or loss and other comprehengsicome and the statement of financial
position assume no intention or necessity to ligtedor curtail operations. This is commonly
referred to as thgoing concerrbasis.

Management has assessed that the Company and Gawaphe ability to continue as a going
concern and has prepared the financial statemaerttseogoing concern basis.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements have been prepared ohisharical cost basis, except for the following,
which are measured at fair value:
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Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Basis of presentation (continued)

- Financial instruments at fair value through oth@nprehensive income; and
- Revaluation of certain property, plant and equipmen

Revenues and expenses

Revenues and expenses are recorded on the acesis] Whereby transactions and events are
recognized in the period in which the transactiand events occur, regardless of whether there
has been a receipt or payment of cash or its elgumta

Judgments and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in etaoce with IFRS requires management to
make judgments and estimates that affect:

- The application of accounting policies;

- The reported amounts of assets and liabilities;

- Disclosures of contingent assets and liabilitiest a

- The reported amounts of revenue and expenses dhengporting periods.

Actual results may differ from estimates made iesth consolidated and separate financial
statements. The use of estimates is an essentiadfghe preparation of financial statements and
does not undermine their reliability.

Judgments are made in the selection and assessihéine Company’s accounting policies.
Estimates are used mainly in determining the measent of recognized transactions and
balances. Estimates are based on historical experiend other factors, including expectations
of future events, believed to be reasonable urtdecircumstances. Judgments and estimates are
interrelated. Management’s judgments and estimatescontinually re-evaluated to ensure they
remain appropriate. Revision to accounting estimaerecognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in the future perioccttl.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)

Judgments and estimates (continued)

The following are the accounting policies that aubject to judgments and estimates that the
Management believes could have the most significapaict on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements.

Operating segments information
Judgment — Management uses judgment in determining the siityilaof the economic
characteristic of the segments for aggregation.

Financial assets

Judgment- Financial assets are classified and subsequenthguned at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair valueugh profit or loss based on a) the company’s
business model for managing the financial assedsbaithe contractual cash flow characteristic of
the financial assets. Judgment is required in deteng the business model and its objective.

Revenue from contract with customers

Judgment-is required in a) identifying performance obligagcand determining the timing of the
satisfaction of the performance obligations anthk)transaction price and the amount allocated to
the performance obligations.

Estimation— if the consideration promised in a contract inchidevariable amount, the company
is required to estimate the amount of consideratiomhich it will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the promised goods or services tatistomer.

Leases

Estimation— The initial measurement of theease Liabilityis based on an estimate of the present
value of the lease payments outstanding, discouwmaty the Company’s incremental borrowing
rate.

Also, the cost of the right-of-use asset comprigesestimate of costs to be incurred by the
Company in dismantling and removing the underlyasget, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the conditemuired by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Consolidation

Judgment — The Company uses judgment in determitigg entities that it controls and
accordingly consolidates. An entity is controllethem the Company has power over the entity,
exposure or rights to variable returns from itsolrement with the entity and the ability to use its
power over the entity to affect the number of nesuit receives from the entity. If facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changesémomore of the control elements, the Company
reassess whether it still has control.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)

Judgments and estimates (continued)
Joint arrangement

Judgment — Management applies judgment in detengpitie type of joint arrangement in which it
is involved. The classification of the joint arramgent as a joint operation or a joint venture
depends upon the rights and obligations of theigsatb the arrangement, its structure and legal
form, the terms agreed by the parties in the cotted arrangement, and when relevant, other facts
and circumstances.

Investment property

Judgment — Management applies judgment in detengiimihether a property qualifies as an
investment property. Criteria are developed tovallmanagement to exercise that judgment
consistently.

Related parties and related party transactions

Judgmen — Management uses judgment in determining thel le¥edetails to be disclosed.
Consideration is given to the closeness of theaadlparty relationship and other factors relevant i
establishing the level of significance of the tractsn(s).

Receivables

Estimation— Management’s estimate of allowance on accountsvaue is based on an analysis
of the Aged Receivables and measurement oEtpected Credit Losse§he Company measure
expected credit losses by applying an unbiasedeaosthbility-weighted amount that is determined
by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, thee tiralue of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available withouadue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecaststafdieconomic conditions.

Income and other taxes

Judgment- Income and other taxes are subject to Governmditig® In calculating current and
recoverable income and other taxes, Managementjudgment when interpreting the tax rules
and in determining the tax position. There are stmagsactions and events for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordineoyrse of business.

Estimation—Income and other taxes are subject to Governmditigx) and estimates are required
in determining the provision. Management recognirgslities for possible tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes may be due.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Judgments and estimates (continued)

Contingencies

In determining the existence of a contingent lighimanagement assesses the existence of:

A possible obligation that arises from a past et which existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of oneanore uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company, or;

A present obligation that arises from a past ewentis not recognized because it is not
possible that an outflow of economic benefit isuiegd to settle or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured reliably. In estingatpossible outflow of economic
benefits In relation to a contingent liability, ne@ment, sometimes in consultation with
experts such as legal counsel may or may not mekéspn in the financial statements
based on judgments regarding possible outcomesrdingoto specific but uncertain
circumstances. Contingent liabilities are disclosedthe financial statements unless
immaterial or the possibility of an outflow of e@nic benefits is remote.

Inventories

Estimation— Inventories are carried at the lower of cost arid@alized value. Cost is measured at
the weighted average basithe estimation of net realized value is based @nriost reliable
evidence available, at the time the estimates ademof the amount the inventories are expected
to realize. Additionally, estimation is requiredr fmventory provision due to shrinkage, slow-
moving and expiration.

Impairment of assets

Judgment — Management uses judgment in determihangrouping of assets to identify the Cash-
Generating Units (“CGUSs”) for testing for impairmesf property, plant and equipment (“PPE"),
Intangibles and Goodwill. Management has determihatlits three (3) strategic business units are
its CGUs which comprise Distribution (Householddrots, detergents and bulk foods), Wholesale
(Trading outlets and supermarkets) and Other Oipasat (Manufacturer of flavours and
fragrances; and wood products). In testing for iimpant of PPE, these assets are allocated to the
CGUs to which they relate.

Judgment has been used, at each reporting datdetermining whether there has been an
indication of impairment which would require thewgaletion of impairment testing.

Estimation — Management’s estimates of a CGUs’ vexable based on value-in-use involves
estimating future cash flows before taxes. Fut@&hcflows are estimated based on a multi-year
extrapolation of the last five years historicaluadtresults and a terminal value by discounting the
final year in perpetuity. The growth rate appliedthe terminal value is based on the Bank of
Jamaica’s target inflation rate or Management'smese of the growth rate specific to the
individual item being tested. The future cash flegtimates are then discounted to their present
value using the appropriate pre-tax discount ratéch includes a risk premium specific to the
business. The final determination of a CGUSs’ recalike amount is based on fair value less cost to
sell and its value-in-use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)

Judgments and estimates (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceedsdsverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable antolmpairment losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income. This is reversed only iféhesis been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount and not to exteedoriginal carrying amount before its
impairment. The reversal is also recognized in rotlhenprehensive income.

Others

Estimation— Other estimates include determining the usefukliokProperty, Plant and Equipment
for depreciation; in accounting for and measurimygbles and accruals and in measuring fair
values of financial instruments.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to publised standards effective in the current
year.

The following new standards, amendments and ind&apons have been issued and adopted, and,
accordingly, have been applied in preparing tharfoial statements.

Leases (IFRS 16)

In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16easeswhich replace IAS 17+easesand related
interpretations. IFRS 16 provides a single lessm®unting model, requiring the recognition of
assets and liabilities for all leases unless thedderm is 12-months or less or the underlyingtass
has a low value. IFRS 16 substantially carries &ydmhe lessor accounting in IAS 17 with the
distinction between operating and finance leaseglretained.

Annual Improvements 2015-2017

In December 2017, the IASB issued amendments tod@ndards, including IFRS 3 — Business
Combinations, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IAS 1lheome Taxes and IAS 23 — Borrowing
Costs.

The amendment to IFRS 3 clarifies how a companmeasures its previously held interest in a
joint operation when it obtains control of a busseThe amendments to IAS 12 clarify that all
income tax consequences of dividends should beyréoed in profit or loss, regardless of how the
tax arises. The amendment to IAS 23 clarifies thaty specific borrowing remains outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intendslar sale, that borrowing becomes part of thefund
that an entity generally borrows when calculatimg ¢apitalization rate on general borrowings.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CON TINUED)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to publised standards effective in the current
year (continued)

Effects of Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company and Group adopted IFRS 16: LeasesgtigBeJanuary 1, 2019. This resulted in
material changes to the financial statements Bee¢mber 31, 2019.

The change in accounting policy was made in accmelavith the transitional provisions of IFRS 16.
These provisions required the Company and Groupetmgnizeright-of-use assets and.ease
Liability of $1.14B (Company $1.04B) in the statement ofiiicial position. Anddepreciation
expense on right-of-usgssetof $96.6M (Company $90.9M) in the statement of prof loss and
other comprehensive income.

Expense, classified aRent totalling $144.2M (Company $134.8M) was replaceith interest
expenseandprincipal repaymenbn thelLease Liabilityof $79.3M (Company $73.1M) and $64.9M
(Company $61.7M) respectively.

In addition, the Company and Group applied the tpralcexpedient of continuing with contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying IABL&asesand IFRIC 4Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Leaaad not to apply leases to contracts that wergremiously identified
as containing a lease applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

IFRS 16: Leases, will be applied retrospectivelyhwihe cumulative effect of initial application
recognized in the opening balance of retained egspicomparative information will not be restated.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to exigig standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Company.

The following new standards, amendments, and irg&apons have been issued and may impact the
financial statements but are not effective forfieeal year ended 31 December 2019 and accordingly,
have not been applied in preparing these finastééments. These included:

Amendments to IAS 28, ‘Investments in associata$ jamt ventures’, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. These amemtdnetarify the accounting policy choice available
for electing to measure the investments at faevéthrough profit or loss in accordance

Management is currently assessing the likely futm@act of this amendment on its financial stateisien
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)

(@)

Basis of consolidation

The principal accounting policies applied in theparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies hage bonsistently applied for all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated, and have kggireda consistently throughout the
Group.

These consolidated financial statements includeatio®unts of Derrimon Trading Company
Limited (DTCL) and entities it controls. An entity controlled when the Company has the
ability to direct the relevant activities of thetiéy) has exposure or rights to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity, and is abteuse its power over the entity to affect its
returns from the entity. Income or loss and eaghpanent of other comprehensive income
(OCI) are attributed to the shareholders of the @amy and the non-controlling interests.

The consolidated financial statements include ih@ntial statements of the Company and its
holdings in Select Grocers and its subsidiariegjbBaan Flavours and Fragrances Limited
(CFFL) and Woodcats International Company Limitedallows:

% Ownership by | % Ownership
Entity Principal Activity Company at by Company
31 December 2019 at
31 December
2018
CFFL Manufacture of Flavours an
Fragrances 62.02% 62.02%
Select Grocers | Operation of Supermarket 60% 60%
Woodcats Manufacturers of wooden
International pallets 100% 100%
Limited

DTCL as at December 31, 2019, owns 62.02% of llaees of CFFL, the same percentage as
the prior year.

DTCL continues to hold 60% holding in the joint ogion with Select Grocers and accounts
for this entity by incorporating 60% of its assdiabilities, revenue and expenses into the
financial statements of the Parent Company.

On September 6, 2018, DTCL acquired 100% of thaeshaf Woodcats International
Limited, a manufacturer of wooden pallets, making wholly-owned subsidiary.



Page 17

Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY (CONTINUED )

(b)

(©)

Joint operation

A joint operation is an arrangement in which twonoore parties contractually agree to the
sharing of control and decisions about relevanvisiess require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control. In a joint operatitw parties that have joint control have rights
to the assets and obligations for the liabilities.

The Company records its interest in the joint openés assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in the Group accounts.

Business combination

The company applies the acquisition method in atitog for a business combination.

The consideration transferred by the company tainltontrol of a subsidiary is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair value efdhksets transferred, liabilities assumed, and
the equity interests issued by the company.

The company recognizes identifiable assets acqunedliabilities assumed in a business
combination regardless of whether they have beewiquisly recognized in the company’s
financial statements prior to the acquisition. Assacquired, and liabilities assumed are
generally measured at their acquisition-date faiue.

Any Goodwill is stated after separate recognitidnidentifiable intangible assets. It is
calculated as the excess of the sum of a) fairevaluconsideration transferred, b) the
recognized amount of any non-controlling interesthie acquiree and c) acquisition-date
fair value of any existing equity interest in thegjairee, over the acquisition-date fair values
of the identifiable net assets. If the fair valuéshe identifiable net assets exceed the sum
calculated above, the excess amount, i.e., gaibaogain purchase, is recognized in profit
or loss immediately.

Transaction costs that the Company incurs in cdioreevith a business combination are
expensed immediately.

Non-controlling interests

Equity in the Company not attributable, directly wmrdirectly, to the Company, is
considered non-controlling interest. When the probpo of the equity held by non-
controlling interest’s changes, the Company adjtrescarrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect the chanigetheir relative interest in the Company.
The Company recognizes directly in equity any défee between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted, andféiirevalue of the consideration paid or
received, and attribute it to the shareholders ofhe t Company.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY (CONTINUED )

(d)

(€)

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Complaatyengages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expengks. operating results are regularly
reviewed by the entity’s Chief Operating Decisioakdr (CODM) to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assemsformance and for which discrete
financial information is available.

The Company has identified the following segments:

Distribution (Household products, chilled and ambient beveragesergents and bulk
foods);

Wholesale(Trading outlets and supermarkets); and

Other Operations (Manufacturer of Flavours and Fragrances, pabetd by products of
wood)

In 2018, the ambient beverages division was addethe distribution segment as the
Company entered into an agreement with SM JahheklGompany Limited to distribute its
beverage products. The pallets and by-productsooidwvere added to the other operations
segment as a result of the 100% acquisition of Watsdinternational Limited, resulting in
the company becoming a part of the Group.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipinaght-of-use assets, investment
property, and intangible assets with finite usdiuks are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there areiadigators of impairment. Indicators of

impairment may include a significant decline in edsmarket value, material adverse
changes in the external operating environment whiifact how the asset is used or is
expected to be used, obsolescence, or physicalgiaofahe asset. If any such indicators
exist, then the recoverable amount of the asstimmated. Goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives and intangible assetd yet available for use are not amortized
but are tested for impairment at least annuallywbenever there is an indicator that the
asset may be impaired.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)

(€)

(f)

Impairment of assets (continued
Cash generating units (CGU)

When it is not possible to estimate the recovera®unt of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the @GWhich the asset belongs. The
CGUs correspond to the smallest identifiable graipassets whose continuing use
generates cash inflows that are largely indepenaletite cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets. Goodwill acquired in a businessbination is allocated to each of the
CGUs (or groups of CGUSs) expected to benefit fréma synergies of the combination.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives allecated to the CGU to which they relate.

Management’s policy is to principally write down @&iwill when the Company’s cash
generation capacity is unlikely to generate profitan adverse economic environment.

Recording impairments and reversals of impairments

Impairments and reversals of impairments are razedrnn other comprehensive income in
the Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss amkde©OComprehensive Income. Any
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce theytag amount of any goodwill allocated to
the CGU and then to the other assets of the CGlpairments of goodwill cannot be
reversed. Impairments of other assets recognizgdian periods are assessed at the end of
each reporting period to determine if the indicatof impairment have reversed or no
longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if #isémated recoverable amount exceeds the
carrying amount. The increased carrying amountrofasset attributable to a reversal of
impairment may not exceed the carrying amount Waild have been determined had no
impairment been recognized in prior periods

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translatéol Jamaican dollars at rates in effect at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets aailities in foreign currencies are
translated into Jamaican dollars at the closinghamge rate at the statement of financial
position date. Non-monetary assets and liabilief®reign currencies that are measured in
terms of historical cost are translated into Jaaradollars at the exchange rate in effect at
the date of the transaction or initial recognitiblon-monetary items in foreign currencies
that are measured at fair value are translatedubm exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Exchange gains and $o@ssing from translation are included
in other comprehensive income.

Exchange rates are determined by the publishedwesigaverage rate at which commercial
banks trade in foreign exchanges.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)

(9)

Related parties’ disclosure

Related parties are identified and disclosed tovallisers of the financial statements to be
aware of the possibilities that the financial positand profit or loss may have been
affected by the existence of related parties andrdnysactions and outstanding balances,
including commitments, with such parties.

A related party is a person or entity that is esdaip the Company:

(i) A person or close member of that person’s familyelated to the Company if that
person:

Has control or joint control over the Company;

Has significant influence over the Company; or

Is a member of the key management personnel o€Ctdmpany or a parent of the
Company.

(||) An entity is related to the Company if any of tbhédwing conditions apply:

The Company, its subsidiary and joint operation members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary andwedlobsidiary is related to the
others).

One company is an associate or joint venture obther entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which tlieeo entity is a member).

Both companies are joint ventures of the same {iartly.

One company is a joint venture of a third entityd ahe other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The company is a post-employment benefit planHerlienefit of the employees of
either the reporting entity or an entity relatedhe reporting entity.

The company is controlled, or jointly controlled &yerson identified in (a) above.
A person identified related to the Group has sigaift influence over the company
or is a member of the key management personnéleo€tempany (or of a parent of
the company).

The company, or any member of a group of whichsitai part, provides key
management personnel services to the company qatieat of the company.

A related party transaction involves the transférre@sources, services or obligations
between a reporting company and a related partyardéess of whether there is a
consideration or not.
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(h) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the company satisfoesfarmance obligation by transferring
the promised goods to the customer in an amourit réfeects the consideration the
company expects to be entitled to in exchangehiose goods.

The promised goods are transfervdtenor asthe customer obtain control.
Revenue is recognized when the customer obtairtsat@f the goods as described below:

I. Sales
The performance obligatiorsatisfied at a point-in-timeto transfer products to
customers. Revenue is recognized when the produetdelivered to the customers,
and the customers take control of the products,th@dompany has a present right
to payment as evidence by an invoice or the riglmyoiced

ii.  Interestincome
The performance obligationsatisfied over time,thecompany simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided b tmpany's performance as the
Company performs. Revenue is recognized when earned

iii.  Dividend income
The performance obligation,satisfied at a point-in-time,the company
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefitgided by the Company's
performance as the Company performs. Revenue agneeed when declared, and
the right to receive payment is established.

iv.  Other operating income
Includes gains and losses on disposal of asset$al rencome received from
investment properties and miscellaneous inflowse Tgerformance obligation,
satisfied at a point-in-timehe company simultaneously receives and consunees th
benefits provided by the Company's performance htes €ompany performs.
Revenue is recognized when received from customers.
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()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at hestbdost, less accumulated depreciation
and impairment. Historical cost includes expendittinat is directly attributable to the
acquisition of items. The land is carried at cost 8 not depreciated.

Right-of-useassets are measured at cost, less accumulatedidépreand impairment and
adjusted for any re-measurement of the leaseitiabil

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line baissuch rates that will write off the
carrying value of the assets over the period af #sgected useful lives or lease term.

Current annual rates of depreciation are:

Buildings 2.5%

Leasehold improvements 2.5%

Machinery and equipment 10.0%

Furniture, fittings and fixtures 20.0%

Motor vehicles 20.0%

Computer 33.33%

Right-of-use Straight-line over the period of the lease term

The assets’ residual values and useful lives aveewed periodically for impairment.
Where the assets’ carrying amount is greater tteaestimated recoverable amount, it is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plantegugoment are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are rézed in other income in the statement
of other comprehensive income. Repairs and maintanaxpenditure are included in the
statement of comprehensive income during the fisduperiod in which they are incurred.
The cost of major renovations is included in the'ygag amount of the asset when it is
probable that the future economic benefits in exadsthe originally assessed standard of
performance of the existing asset will flow to thempany.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes tise alomaterials, direct labour and related
cost to put the asset into service. Borrowing ¢aetsuding but not limited to, interest on
borrowings and exchange differences arising on sheolrowings, that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and/or constructadna qualifying asset are capitalized as
part of the cost of that asset. Capitalization@idwing costs ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifgsget for its use are complete. Thereafter,
borrowing costs are recognized in profit or losewlkhey are incurred.
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()

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Right-of-useassets are initial measurement at the present vafluthe lease payments
outstanding, discounted using the Company’s inergal borrowing rate and include an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the Companyigmantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which ibcated or restoring the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditiohthe lease.

Leases (right-of-use assets)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contaxtveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchangedonsideration. This is reassessed if the
terms and conditions of the contract are changed.

Lessee
At January 1, 2019, the Company recognizegla-of-useasset and kease liability

Initial measurement of theght-of-use asseat at cost, cost being the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that dateputised using the Companyiiscremental
borrowing rate plus an estimate of costs to be incurredretiring the assetj.e., asset
retirement obligations required by the terms andddmns of the lease. The cost is
remeasured if the terms of the lease changes.

The Company has elected to not to applyriflet-of-use asseandlease liabilityto:

(a) short-term leases, less than 12-months; and
(b) leases for which the underlying asset is of lowuegal.e., printers, laptop computers,
small furniture and selected properties.

These will be charged as lease expense in therstateof profit or loss.
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()

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of ajuisition over the fair value of the
Company’s share of identifiable assets acquirediahiities assumed.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. Goodwi$ impaired, when the cash-
generating unit (CGU) to which the goodwill is &i&wed,carrying valueis higher than the
recoverable valuef the unit. Impairment of goodwill is not reversed

Other intangibles — brand name, formula, customer and supplier ioglships and
technological expertise

Other intangible represents the identified assebeeltled in excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Company'aurshof identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

Other intangible is tested annually for impairmedther intangible is impaired when the
cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the other igtale appliescarrying valueis higher
than therecoverable valuef the unit. Impairment of other intangible is resed if, and
only if, there has been a change in the estimated to determine the asset's recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recodniared only to the extent of the original
impairment loss

Research and development expenditure
Expenditures on research activities are expensetased.

Expenditure on development activities is recognizsdan asset if, and only if, the
Company can demonstrate all of the following; othise, it is expensed as incurred:

(@) the technical feasibility of completirfietintangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale.

(b) its intention to complete the intangibgset and use or sell it.

(c) its ability to use or sell the intangilalsset.

(d) how the intangible asset will generate ptwe future economic benefits. Among
other things, the entity can demonstrate the exist®f a market for the output of the
intangible asset or the intangible asset itselfibit is to be used internally, the
usefulness of the intangible asset.

(e) the availability of adequate technicahaficial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible asset



Page 25

Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S (CONTINUED)

(m)

Research and development expenditure

) its ability to reliably measure the expéuoce attributable to the intangible asset
during its development.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that giveserto a receipt or payment in cash or its
equivalents, and a financial asset of one partyafidancial liability or equity instrument
of another party. Financial assets and financadilities are recognized in the statement of
financial position when the Company becomes a partthe contractual provisions of a
financial instrument. All financial instruments araeasured at fair value on initial
recognition. Subsequent measurement of these aswktmbilities is based on fair value or
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Transaction costs that are directly attributabldgh® acquisition or issuance of financial
assets and financial liabilities, other than finahassets and financial liabilities classified
as Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), adeled to or deducted from the fair value
on initial recognition. Transaction costs direclyributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities classified as FVTREke recognized immediately in net
income.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets

The Company classifies financial assets accordnigstbusiness model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of #sh dlows. All the financial assets are

classified in the measurement categanyortized cosbecause the financial assets are held
within a business model with the objective to hbithncial assets to collect contractual

cash flows, and the contractual terms of the firaresset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principadl amerest on the principal amount

outstanding. These assets are measured at amodozdusing the effective interest

method and are subject to impairment. Gains anse®sre recognized in profit or loss

when the asset is derecognized, modified or imgaire

Investments in equity instruments

The Company made an irrevocable election to presemither comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value of its investain equity instruments which are not
held for trading.Dividends from these investments are recognizgaofit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S (CONTINUED)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortizealst using the effective interest method
with gains and losses recognized in net income h@a period that the liability is
derecognized. The financial liability is derecogrzwhen the contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire.

The Company does not carry any financial instruselgssified as Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

Financial instruments (continued)
Credit risk and expected credit loss

The Company is only expose to credit risk on igglér receivables, and as such does not
provide for anylifetime expected credit loss (LECI).applies the practical experience of
not adjusting the promised consideration receivdideause the period is less than 12-
months.

The Company’s financial assets and financial liabd are classified and measured as
follows:

Asset/Liability

Classification

Measurement

Receivables

Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Investments

Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Investments in equity

Amortized cost

Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents

Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Related party receivables

Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Bank overdraft

Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Payables

Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Short-term loan
Long-term borrowing

Amortized cost Amortized cost

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost andrealizable value. The cost of inventories
is determined based on theighted average cosind includes costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and comwli Inventories comprised finished
goods, work-in-progress, and raw and packaging mage

Net realizable value is the estimated selling pateventory during the normal course of
business less estimated selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are carried at antezipeealizable value. An allowance for
expected credit loss (ECLOf trade and other receivables is established whenre is
objective evidence that the Company will not beeabl collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of the receivables. The dagyamount of the asset is reduced through
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(0)

(P)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

the use of this ECL allowance, and the amount ef Itss is recognized iBad Debt
expensen the statement of profit or loss. When tradesieable is deemed uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Sghsat recoveries of amounts previously
written off are recognized as recovery and creditelddaddebt expense in the statement of
profit or loss.

Prepayments are partial or full settlements of dmbexpenses before the contractually
obligated due date, this includes advances andsitspo

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is disclasedote 29 (b).

Income tax

The income tax expense for the year comprises mugred deferred tax. Income tax expense
is recognized in net income, except to the extealt it relates to items recognized either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current taxation

Current tax charge is the expected tax payabldenaxable income for the year, using tax
rates in effect at the reporting date plus any areunder provision of tax in respect of
previous years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for tempyralifferences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and their amoastsieasured for tax purposes, which will
result in taxable amounts in future periods. Deigriax assets are recognized for temporary
differences which will result in deductible amouimtduture periods, but only to the extent it
is probable that sufficient taxable profits will Beailable against which these differences can
be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measuré¢axatates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the asset will be realized or tlability will be settled based on enacted rates.

At December 31, 2018, deferred tax was accountedbéoause DTCL 100% tax free
remission status expired December 16, 2018. DTdILbei subject to 50% income tax on its
taxable profits from December 17, 2018 to DecemhgeR023.

The other subsidiaries of the Group that are stbjecincome tax is as follows:
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p) Income tax (continued)

Deferred taxation (continued)

(i) CFFL, is also listed on the Junior Market bé&tJSE and effective October 3, 2018, its
100% tax free status expired, and it is now sulgéhcome tax at 50% on its taxable
profits for the next five (5) years to October @23; and

(i) The other subsidiary, Woodcats Internationsinot listed on the Junior Market of the
JSE and is subject to payment of full income tax.

(g) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideratioregiby the Group in exchange for service
rendered by employees. These include current ort-sdton benefits such as salaries,
bonuses, NIS contributions, annual leave, and nonetary benefits such as medical care
and termination benefits.

Employee benefits that are earned as a resultsdfgoacurrent service are recognized in the
following manner: short-term employee benefitsramgnized as a liability, net of payments

made, and charged as an expense. The expectedfa@station leave that accumulates is
recognized when the employee becomes entitlecetetive.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations of the Company fuwdg or services acquired in the
ordinary course of business from vendors and sepli

Amounts accrued for certain expenses are basestimages and are included in payables.

The Company’s exposure to liquidity and cash flowsks are disclosed in Note 29 (c)

(s) Borrowing; borrowing cost and interest

Borrowing (loans) is classified as current when @wnpany expects to settle the liability
in its normal operating cycle, it holds the liatyilprimarily for the purpose of trading, the
liability is due to be settled within 12 monthseafthe date of the statement of financial
position, or it does not have an unconditional trighdefer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the date of the statemenrfinahcial position. Otherwise, it is

classified as long-term. Subsequent to initial geatoon, borrowings are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest metHeds any impairment, with gains and
losses recognized in net income in the period ttegt liability is derecognized.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t) Borrowing; borrowing cost and interest (continued)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acdios, construction or production of
qualifying assets are capitalized as part of th& ob these assets. Capitalization of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are sualtyargady for their intended use or
sale. All other borrowing costs are recognizednafipor loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

(u) Share capital, dividends and distributions

Shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Increaianasts directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are deducted, net ofrtam proceeds.

Dividends

Dividends declared, and payable to the Companyaresiolders are recognized as a
liability in the consolidated statement of finaricposition in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s Board oéddors.

Distributions

Distributions to non-controlling interest are renagd as a liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position in the period inieththe distributions are declared.

(v) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) are calculatedibiging the net income attributable to
the shareholders by the weighted average numbandafary shares outstanding during the
reporting period.

(w) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has @mrésgal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events if it is probable that atflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the am@an be made. Where the Group expects
a provision to be reimbursed, for example, undeinaarance contract, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset but only wherithbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is chargdtiestatement of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( CONTINUED)

(W)

v)

Investments

Investments are highly liquid instruments, primahbnds and equities in both Jamaican and
United States dollar denominations, with an origiteam to maturity of more than three
months.

Finance income and costs

Finance income comprises interest income on fundssied. Interest income is recognized as
it accrues, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borgsvand bank charges. Borrowing costs are
recognized in profit or loss using the effectiveenest method.

Non-controlling interests

Equity in the controlled entities not attributabterectly or indirectly, to the Company, is
considered non-controlling interest. When the propo of the equity held by non-
controlling interest’s changes, the Company adjtistscarrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect the chanigetheir relative interest in the controlled
entities, the Company recognizes directly in eqaity difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted the fair value of the consideration paid
or received, and attribute it to the shareholdéts® Company.

Comparative information

Where necessary, comparative figures have beeasssftbd and or restated to conform to
changes in the current year.
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3. SEGMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segmesésl lma the reports reviewed by the Chief
Executive Officer that are used to make strateguigions.

The Group operates three (3) segments. Two (2) eseignare exposed to similar risks as they both
sell household and grocery products and the tlginent, which is new due to the consolidation of
the subsidiary, manufactures flavours and fragmntiee principal divisions are:

(i

(ii)

(i)

Distribution distribution of Nestle household products, Sun &oletergents and bulk food
products and chilled and ambient beverages.

On September 3, 2018, the beverage division wasdaddring the year as the Company was
appointed as the exclusive distributor of SM Jdrded Company Limited, a Trinidadian entity,
to distribute its range of soft drinks and juiceshe Jamaican marketplace.

Wholesale and retailoperation of seven (7) outlets, six trading untlernrame Sampars Cash
and Carry and Sampars Outlets and the other uneleraime Select Grocers.

The distribution hub, along with four (4) outletslocated in Kingston and Saint Andrew, and
the other three (3) locations are in rural Jamaica.

Other operations — manufacturer of flavours andriiaces and wooden pallets.
On September 6, 2018, the Company acquired 100%elstiding in Woodcats International

Limited (WIL), a manufacture of wooden pallets dnwdproducts of wood such as mulch. The
directors classified the operations of this entitgler the ‘other operations’ segment.
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3.  SEGMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Revenue from external custome
Depreciation
Depreciation- right of use

Current liabilities

Current Assets

Revenue from external custome
Depreciation

Current liabilities

Current Assets

Revenue from external custome
Depreciation
Depreciationfight of use

Current liabilities

Current Assets

Revenue from external custome
Depreciation

Current liabilities

Current Assets

The Group
2019
Distribution Wholesale & Other Total
Retail Operations
$000 $000 $000 $000
6,459,327 5,178,551 1,011,139 12,649,017
14,410 37,558 15,120 67,088
17,761 73,157 5,700 96,618
367,780 1,256,001 89,902 1,713,683
1,301,529 1,818,780 701,179 3,821,488
The Group
2018
Distribution Wholesale & Other Total
Retail Operations
$000 $000 $000 $000
3,832,689 4,926,547 544,224 9,303,460
24,741 34,234 34,157 83,655
1,320,576 563,173 77,842 1,961,591
1,812,234 769,030 431,349 3,012,613
The Company
2019
Distribution Wholesale & Total
Retail
$000 $000 $000
6,459,327 5,178,551 11,637,878
14,410 37,558 51,968
17,761 73,157 90,918
367,780 1,256,001 1,623,781
1,301,529 1,818,780 3,120,309
The Compan y
2018
Wholesale & Total
Distribution Retail
$000 $000 $000
3,832,689 4,926,547 8,759,236
24,471 24,757 49,498
1,381,128 563,173 1,944,301
1,812,233 769,030 2,581,263

Management provides individual segment accountimg weekly and monthly basis to the CEO.
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4. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
The Group’s functional and presentation currenahésJamaica dollar (J$)

5. OTHER INCOME

The Group The Comp any
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Interest income - 1 - 1
Advertising space 7,179 - 7,179 -
Rental from warehousgpace 640 31,294 640 31,294
Other income: insurance proceeds, bad det
recovered and dividends 29,948 34,953 19,045 13,111
37,767 66,248 26,864 44,406
6. EXPENSES BY NATURE
The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Direct costs $:000 $:000 $:000 $:000
Cost of inventories recognized as an expens
10,370,1 7,612,427 9,608,914 7,244,705
83
The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
Administrative expenses
Directors fees ,1,275 1,170 780 360
Insurance 46,716 52,399 40,897 48,557
Foreign exchange loss 474 - - -
Motor vehicle expenses 20,101 12,790 8,990 10,824
Professional services 61,367 68,103 52,748 62,508
Office expenses 49,713 22,165 41,597 18,473
Leaseshort term value 3,082 - - -
Repairs and maintenance 40,491 29,334 35,343 26,557
Rental of equipment and office (see lease liab = 139,995 - 125,180
note)
Staff costs, including director’s salary (note 7) 713,586 469,630 619,237 419,814
Security 39,003 32,367 37,366 30,057
Utilities 113,733 107,520 108,329 104,996
Depreciation 59,059 56,682 51,967 49,498
Depreciatiorfor right of useassets 96,510 - 90,918 -
Travelling and accommodation 21,413 16,059 10,274 6,229
Other, including minimum business tax 12,891 61,281 - 60,978

1,279,41 1,069,495 1,098,451 964,031
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6. EXPENSES BY NATURE (CONTINUED)

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Selling and distribution $:000 $:000 $:000 $:000
Advertising and promotion 57,109 77,860 54,221 76,170
Commission 22,697 13,905 22,697 13,905
Bad debts written off 29,335 12,042 29,335 11,556
Trucking and delivery 260,363 129,911 259,847 126,475
Warehousing 38,760 - 38,760 -
408,265 233,718 404,861 228,106
The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Finance costs $:000 $000 $:000 $:000
Long term loans: Interest (includir
preference dividend, credit line a 220,044 *172,223 219,017 170,376
bank charges)
Lease liability interest expense 78,560 - 78,559 -
298,604 172,223 297,576 170,376

* reclassified for comparative purposes

Expenses by nature include the total cost of sdissibution costs, administration and other exgesn

7. STAFF COSTS

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Salaries and wages 543,445 501,975 460,412 383,155
Staff welfare 98,493 29,968 87,177 23,598
Contract services and other 71,648 39,547 71,648 13,061
713,586 571,490 619,237 419,814

The average number of persons employed full-timéhbyGroup during the year was 522 (2018 —
415), and part-time was 30 (2018- 62).
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8. JOINT OPERATIONS

Since March 2017, the Company has a 60% intereSkelact Grocers, an unincorporated business.
Select Grocers is operated as an “upscaled” supketpositioned to capture the affluent middle

classes. There was no change in the strategididimeaanagement or operation of this entity during
the year.

Select Grocers: Summarized financial information as at 31 December 2019.

2019 2018

$'000 $'000
Dividends received from joint operation Nil Nil
Current assets 163,225 113,626
Cash and cash equivalents included in current
assets 23,838 8,278
Non-current assets 325,644 143,544
Current liabilities 86,891 84,360
Current financial liabilitiesexcluding trade and
other payables and provisipmcluded in current
liabilities - -
Non-current liabilities 202,329 6,000
Revenue 619,968 564,697
Depreciation and amortization 14,450 14,254
Interest income 5 8
Interest expense (including lease expense) (28,034) (1,049)
Income tax expense or income - -
Profit or loss from continuing operations 32,840 24,218
Post-tax profit or loss from continuing operations 32,840 24,218

Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 32,840 24,218




Page 36

Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2019

9. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

As at December 31, 2019, the Company has holdih§2.602% and 100% of the issued shares of
Caribbean Flavours and Fragrances Limited (CFFId WAfoodcats International Limited (WIL)
respectively.

CFFL: Summarized financial information as at Decemier 31, 2019

2019 2018

$'000 $'000
Dividends received from subsidiary 12,432 11,959
Current assets 463,587 453,273
Cash and cash equivalents included in currentasset 11,546 65,632
Non-current assets 99,634 21,196
Current liabilities 50,880 40,866
Current financial liabilitiesexcluding trade and other payables
and provisionincluded in current liabilities 6,200 2,531
Non-current liabilities 82,163 4,898
Revenue 462,462 674,298
Depreciation and amortization (includinights of use) 12,068 7,185
Interest income 15,408 25,381
Interest expense (including lease liability) (520) (1,152)
Income tax expense (5,307) (2,204)
Profit or loss from continuing operations 36,807 118,085
Post-tax profit from continuing operations 31,500 115,881

Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 31,500 115,881
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10. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Woodcats International Limited: Summarized financial information as at December 31, 2019

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Dividends received from subsidiary - -
Current assets 202,430 186,628
Cash and cash equivalents included in currentsasset 6,535 26,610
Non-current assets 127,526 56,256
Current liabilities 39,024 35,428
Current financial liabilitiesexcluding trade and other
payables and provisignncluded in current liabilities 919 -
Non-current liabilities 33,760 30,880
Revenue 548,677 462,990
Depreciation and amortization 8,753 4,893
Interest income 1 -
Interest expense (508) (6,236)
Income tax expense (10,174) (10,737)
Profit or loss from continuing operations 53,979 53,936
Post-tax profit or loss from continuing operations 43,805 43,198
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 43,805 43,198
The Company
Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Venture 2019 2018
$:000 $:000
Caribbean Flavours & Fragrances 438,722 438,722
Woodcats International 355,000 355,000
Long-term Investment 148,819 148,351

Balance at the end of the year 942,541 942,073
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11. INCOME TAX

Derrimon Trading Company Limited (DTCL) is listed the Junior Market of the Jamaica Stock
Exchange, effective December 17, 2013, and unaeimitome Tax Act (Jamaica Stock Exchange
Junior Market) (Remission) Notice 2010, 100% ofoime taxes will be remitted by the Minister of

Finance during the first five (5) years of listinghich expired December 17, 2018. DTCL is now
required to account for income tax at 50% during skecond five (5) years, from December 17,
2018, to December 16, 2023.

To obtain the remission of income taxes, the follgyvconditions should be adhered to over the
period:
(a) DTCL remains listed for at least 15 years and issospended from the JSE for any breaches
of the rules of the JSE;
(b) The Subscribed Participating Voting Share Capit@TCL does not exceed $500 million; and
(c) DTCL has at least 50 Participating Voting Sharebdd

The financial statements have been prepared obatsie that DTCL will have the full benefit of the
tax remissions. The period is as follows:

Years 1 to 5 (December 17, 2013- December 16, 20180%
Years 6 to 10 (December 17, 2018- December 16,)20230%

DTCL’s subsidiary, CFFL also benefits from tax resion effective October 2, 2013, the
Company’s shares were listed on the Junior Markeéh® JSE. Effective October 3, 2018, the
100% remission status expired and CFFL is now stibjelncome Tax at 50% for the year ended
December 31, 2018. The Company is entitled to assaon of income taxes for (10) ten years in
the following proportion:

Period October 3, 2013 — October 2, 2018 - 100%iafdard rate.
Period October 3, 2018 — October 2, 2023 — 50%arfdard rate.
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11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$000 $000 $000 $000
Current tax expenses:
Current tax expense @ 25% 99,700 65,619 78,546 52,677
Remission of income tax @ 50% (2018-100% (44,560) (50,657) (39,253) (50,657)
52,940 14,962 39,253 2,020
Deferred tax expense/(benefit):
Origination and reversal of temporary and oth
differences (9,922) (10,330) (11,715) (2,020)
Total income tax expense for the year 43,018 4,632 27,538 -
The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Reconciliation of expected and actual tax
expense:
Profit before taxation 345,725 281,845 254,940 196,424
Adjustments to income taxes resulting from:
Computed “expected” tax expense @ 25% 86,431 70,461 63,735 49,106
Difference between profit for financial
statements and tax reporting purposes on: -
Depreciation and capital adjustments (15,819) (12,332) (11,715) (16,901)
Net effect of other charges for tax purpose 20,788 1,924 14,770 18,452
Employers tax credit (3,822) (4,764) - -
Adjustment for the effect of remission of ta (44,560) (50,657) (39,252) (50,657)

Reconciled tax charge to profit and loss 43,018 4,632 27,538 -




Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2019

Page 40

12. CAPITAL RESERVE

Balance: 31 December

Represented by:
2011: Surplus on revaluation of fixed asse:

Realized gains on disposal of shares
2012: Surplus on revaluation of fixed asse

13. INVESTMENT RESERVE

Closing balance: 31 December 2019

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $:000 $:000 $000
94,638 94,638 94,638 94,638
The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $:000 $:000 $'000
94,638 38,420 94,638 38,420
- 689 - 689
- 55,529 - 55,529
94,638 94,638 94,638 94,638
The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
614 614 614 614

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per ordinary share asedl on the Group and Company net profit
attributable to shareholders divided by the weightverage number of ordinary shares of

2,733,360,670 (2018- 2,733,360,670).

Net profit attributable to shareholders

The weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue

Basic earnings per ordinary share

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$000 $'000 $:000 $000
290,744 249,120 227,402 196,424
2,733,361 2,733,361 2,733,361 2,733,361
0.106 0.091 0.083 0.072
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2019
The Group
Furniture. & Leasehold Buildings
Equipment Computer Motor Vehicles Building Land Improvements Total Right of Use
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
Cost or valuation
1 January 2019 314,058 23,058 107,646 49,499 15,933 195,304 705,498 -
Additions 33,288 11,866 17,596 - - 22,194 84,944 1,135,695
Disposals - - (2,500) - - - (2,500) -
31 December 2019 347,346 34,924 123,742 49,499 15,933 217,498 788,942 1,135,695
Acc. Depreciation
1 January 2019 155,109 18,055 52,623 7,917 3,413 10,158 247,275 -
Charge for year 42,591 1,836 17,009 1,010 - 4,642 67,088 96,618
Disposals - - (1,248) - - - (1,248) -
(7,649) - - - - - (7,649) -
31 December 2019 190,051 19,891 68,384 8,927 3,413 14,800 305,466 96,618
Netbook value
31 December 2019 157,295 15,033 55,358 40,572 12,520 202,698 483,476 1,039,077
2018
The Group
Furniture. & Leasehold Buildings
Equipment Computer Motor Vehicles Building Land Improvements Total Right of Use
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cost or valuation
1 January 2018 248,545 20,440 62,082 49,499 15,933 160,453 556,952 -
Additions 68,673 2,618 53,534 - - 34,851 159,676 -
Disposals (3,160) - (7,970) - - (11,131) -
31 December 2018 314,058 23,058 107,646 49,499 15,933 195,304 705,497 -
Acc. Depreciation
1 January 2018 98,825 16,461 39,504 7,917 3,413 3,825 169,945 -
Charge for year 57,710 1,594 18,018 - - 6,333 83,655 -
Disposals (1,426) - (4,899) - - - (6,325) -
31 December 2018 155,109 18,055 52,623 7,917 3,413 10,158 247,275 -
Netbook value
31 December 2018 158,878 5,003 54,523 41,582 12,520 185,146 457,651 -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

2019
The Company
Furniture. & Leasehold Buildings
Equipment Computer Motor Vehicles Building Land Improvements Total Right of Use
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $"000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cost or valuation
1 January 2019 296,506 17,971 78,248 49,499 12,520 128,125 582,869 1,036,097
Adjustment- prior year (1,612) (69) 786 - - (531) (1,426) -
Additions 13,222 11,867 3,995 - - 20,007 49,091 -
31 December 2019 308,116 29,769 83,029 49,499 12,520 147,601 630,533 1,036,097
Acc. Depreciation
1 January 2019 131,027 14,467 41,273 8,952 - 6,771 202,490 -
Charge for year 36,900 1,679 8,788 1,010 - 3,590 51,967 90,918
Adjustment- prior year (5,116) 589 (2,147) 172 (2,797) (9,299) -
31 December 2019 162,811 16,735 47,914 10,134 - 7,564 245,158 90,918
Netbook value
31 December 2019 146,305 13,034 35,115 39,365 12,520 140,037 385,375 945,179
2018
The Company
Furniture. & Leasehold Buildings
Equipment Computer Motor Vehicles Building Land Improvements Total Right of Use
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Cost or valuation
1 January 2018 274,234 15,415 51,107 49,499 12,520 126,040 528,815 -
Additions 22,269 2,556 32,211 - - 2,085 59,120 -
Disposals - - (5,070) - - - (5,070) -
31 December 2018 296,506 17,971 78,248 49,499 12,520 128,125 582,868 -
Acc. Depreciation
1 January 2018 95,599 13,329 36,803 7,917 - 3,613 157,261 -
Charge for year 35,428 1,318 8,560 1,035 - 3,158 49,498 -
Disposals - - (4,089) - - - (4,089) -
31 December 2018 131,027 14,647 41,273 8,952 - 6,771 202,670 -

Netbook value
31 December 2018 165,479 3,324 36,974 40,547 12,520 121,354 380,199 -
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group continued to use the na®ampars Cash and Cartg brand six (6) of its retail outlets
and the name, Select Grocers, for its supermarket business acquisitions of Caribbean Flavours
and Fragrances Limited and Woodcats Internatiamatdd provided intangible assets in the form
of technical formulaendspecial customer relationshipand generajoodwill, respectively.

These intangibles are assessed to have indefsdteiluives and their useful lives are dependent on
the useful life of the cash-generating unit (CGwhich they are allocated.

The Group determines whether intangibles, inclugjagdwill, are impaired on an annual basis or
when events or changes in circumstances indicaec#nrying value may be impaired. This
requires an estimation of the recoverable amounthef CGU. The recoverable amount is
determined by reference to the value in use wschaised on the management’s estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the CGU using ameed) discount rate to calculate the present
value of future cash flows.

For the current period, after review, analysis asdessment, management is of the opinion, that
there is no impairment in the total value of intéhes, including goodwill, as theecoverable
amountsare higher than thearrying amounts

The Group The Company
2019 2019
$'000 $'000
Intangibles Goodwill Intangibles Goodwill
January 1, 2019 942,541 33,220 - 33,220
-Addition, Businessacquisition 256,523 148,899 - -
-Impairment - - - -
-Other adjustments (942,541) - - -
December 31, 2019 256,523 182,120 - 33,220
The Group The Company
2018 2018
$'000 $'000
Intangibles Goodwill Intangibles Goodwill
January 1, 2018 256,523 33,220 - 33,220
-Addition, Business acquisition - 130,720 - -
-Impairment - - - -
-Other adjustments (23,045) o - -

December 31, 2018 233,478 163,940 - 33,220
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INVENTORIES

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$000 $'000 $000 $'000
Sampars wholesale outlets and Selec
Grocers; grocery and household items 636,764 401,967 636,764 401,967
Wholesale bulk commodity food items 1,114,087 709,322 1,114,087 709,322
Subsidiaries: flavours and fragrances
and pallet inventories 241,323 169,498 - -
1,992,174 1,280,787 1,750,852 1,111,289
18. RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Receivables
Trade receivables 966,852 920,602 827,734 745,082
Provision for bad debts (32,812) (33,233) (32,381) (32,380)
934,040 887,369 795,353 712,702
Staff advances 10,992 6,911 9,462 4,242
Other receivables 88,037 272,666 40,419 237,036
1,033,069 1,166,946 845,234 953,980
The following are the trade receivables ageingf & ®december 2019 and 2018.
The Group
Past due but not impaired
Year 0-60 days 60-90 days Over 90 days Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2019 796,629 67,652 102,571 966,852
2018 778,740 52,479 89,384 920,602
The Company
Past due but not impaired
Year 0-30 days 31-59 days 60-90 days Over 90 days Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2019 561,418 110,498 63,224 92,594 827,734
2018 556,443 110,853 35,608 42,178 745,081
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18. RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

19.

Movement in provision for bad debts against traz®ivables:
The Company

The Group
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
01 January 2019 33,233 31,180 32,380 30,748
Amounts provided for during the year
(421) 2,053 - 1,632
31 December 2019 32,812 33,233 32,380 32,380

During the year, the Company wrote off $ 29,334,62318- $12,256,143) to profit or loss after
repeated attempts were made to collect long oustgramounts. Management has deemed the current
receivable balance to be collectable, as all daubthounts were written off during the year.

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
Related party balances consist of the following:

(@) Due from related parties
The Group and

the Company

Convenience Store: 2019 2018
$:000 $'000
Opening balance: 8,166 7,308
Purchases during the year 10,089 12,965
Amounts repaid based on invoices (5,775) (12,107)
12,480 8,166

Balance at the end of the year
The Convenience Store is an entity owned by atdire€he balance is included in receivables on the

Statement of Financial Position.

(b) Key management personnel

During the year the Group paid salaries and rejoaids from key management personnel.
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19.

20.

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (C ONTINUED)

(c) Transactions with related parties

Remuneration paid to directors

Management fees received from subsidiary
Professional fees paid to a director for le
services

Fees paid to directors

Due to/(from) CFFL

Credit risk exposures are as follows:
Opening balance:

Amounts loaned during the year
Amounts repaid during the year
Balance at the end of the year

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$:000 $:000 $'000 $:000
85,445 61,482 48,927 36,687
- (5,500) - (5,500)
3,126 3,192 3,126 3,192
1,275 1,170 780 360
2019 2018
$'000 $'000
56,572 289,060
(56,572) (289,060)

Amounts were borrowed from and repaid by the Compants subsidiary, CFFL during the year.
Interest was charged on the loans at market rates.

INVESTMENTS

Bonds

Bonds — (US$)

Scotia Investment Funds

Jamaica Money Market Brokers Limited (US$)
NCB Capital Markets (US $)

Mayberry Structured: Corporate Paper (MSCP)

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$000 $000 $000 $000

4,956 4,956 4,956 4,956
6,865 - 6,865 -
173,185 - - -
21,531 106,639 - -
51,189 49,393 1,636 1,636
22,873 9,144 17,873 9,144
280,599 170,132 31,330 15,736

Interest earned on bonds ranges between 3.9% HB&MBCP is at 11%.
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21.

22.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Foreign currency accounts

Cash in hand and Jamaican dollar accounts

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$000 $000 $000 $000
48,872 25,133 41,306 12,811
460,755 363,618 450,240 285,728
509,627 388,751 491,546 298,539

The weighted average effective interest rate oraam dollar and US dollar short term deposits was
1.1% (2018 — 2%) and 0.098% (2018 — 1%) respegtivEhese represent call deposits which are

repayable on demand.
PAYABLES

Local payables and accruals

Foreign trade payables
Staff related payables
Statutory liabilities

23. SHORT TERM LOANS

Credit lines with various financial institutions

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$ $ $ $
$000 $000 $000 $000
762,848 975,339 700,135 953,013
194,851 140,733 189,841 120,121
6,951 19,577 5,339 7,579
12,196 13,895 7,535 9,832

976,846 1,149,544

902,850 1,090,545

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$ $ $ $
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
536,316 736,416 535,000 736,416

The credit lines are unsecured and used to pursigsécant commodities sold by the Group.
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24. NON —CONTROLLING INTEREST

The Group
2019 2018
$ $
$000 $000
Non- controlling interest in CFFL subsidiary 163,382 162,597

Set out be below is the summarized financial inftiam for the subsidiary that has a non-controlling
interest that is material to the Group.

Summarized statement of financial position inclugtethe consolidated Group results:

The Group
2019 2018
$ $
$'000 $'000
Current -
Assets 463,587 453,273
Liabilities- 50,880 45,601
Non- current net assets 99,634 21,196
Net asset 512,341 428,868
Summarised comprehensive income included in theatolated Group results:
The Group
2019 2018
$ $
$'000 $'000
Revenue 462,462 674,298
Cost of sales (323,302) (432,190)
Profit before tax 36,807 118,085

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest 8,538 8,538




Page 49
Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2019

24. NON —CONTROLLING INTEREST (CONTINUED)
Summarised cash flows included in the consolid&@exlip results:

The Group
2019 2018
$000 $000
Cash generated from operations 33,501 46,912
Net cash generated from operating activ-
Net cash used in investing activities (148,619) (25,160)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities 61,032 (23,948)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equisalen (54,086) (2,196)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning oféae y 65,632 67,828
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11,546 65,632
The information relating to non-controlling intetespresents amounts before intercompany
eliminations.
25. BORROWINGS
The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i) 7.5% Mayberry- J$100M 92,380 - 92,380 -
i) 8.49% Bank of Nova Scotia 21,098 5,520 3,565 5,520
i)  9.69% National Commercial Bank (NCB) 1,489 2,371 1,489 2,371
iv) 10% First Global Bank (FGB) 1,414 2,856 1,414 2,856
v) Director’s loan - 6,000 - 6,000
vi) 9% Redeemable Preference Shares 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000
vii) 12% National Commercial Bank 131 1,348 131 1,348
viii) Mayberry- Margin A/C 122,169 - 122,169 -
iX) 7.25% Sagicor $21M 20,271 - 20,271 -
X) 7.25% Sagicor $355M 338,470 - 338,470 -
xi) 8.35%-10% FGB Loan 6,518 10,902 1,685 3,473
Xii) 7.25% Sagicor Loan 227,264 243,621 227,264 243,621
xiii) 7.25% FGB Loan 272,903 292,485 272,903 292,485
xiv) 9.5% Jamaica National (JN) Loan 5,256 5,794 5,256 5,794
xv) 9.5% JN Loan 6,214 6,882 6,214 6,882
xvi) 9.5% JN Loan 4,018 4,515 4,018 4,515
xvii) 7.75% JMMB Loan 285,696 - 285,696 -
xviii) 7.25 % Sagicor $100M 98,160 - 98,160 -
Total Borrowings 1,853,451 932,294 1,831,085 924,865
Less: current portion (122,448) (69,636) (119,629) (67,105)
1,731,003 862,658 1,711,454 857,760
xix): Lease Liability 1,070,873 - 974,416 -
Less: current portion (70,601) - (66,302) -

1,000,272 = 908,116 =
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25. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
i)  This represents a promissory note to be repaidaaitivi20, 2021
i) The 8.49% BNS loan monthly repayment is $177,73bthr final payment is scheduled for
October 2022
iii) The 9.69% is payable in monthly installments of @88, and the final payment is scheduled

for June 2022.

iv) The 10% FGB loan is repayable by monthly installbr$148,770 and the final payment is
scheduled for September 2020.

v) During the year, the director’s loan was repaid.

vi) The 11.75% Redeemable Preference Shares were isshtadch 2015 and was redeemed in
full in March 2018. The funds raised were used &y pff credit line along with certain
shareholders loans and to provide working captigipsrt. During the year, this loan was
upsized to $350 million at a reduced rate of 9%

vii) The 12% loan is payable by monthly installments$60,693 and the final payment is
scheduled for May 2020.

viii) This balance represents a margin facility held widyberry Investment Limited.

ix) This balance represents a demand loan associatddthe refinancing of the full cost
associated with the purchase of Woodcats Intenmalti@imited. The loan is repayable in
monthly installments of $246,542 up to 10 years.

X) This represents a demand loan, used to re-findnecbridge loan obtained from Mayberry to
acquire Woodcats International Limited. The loameigayable up to 10 years at $4,167,737
monthly.

xi) The 8.35% - 10% FGB loans were used to purchasermehicles and are secured by the
said vehicles.

xil) The 7.25% Sagicor loan was used to liquidate bahttiggher rates of interest.

xiii) The 7.25 FCB loan was used to liquidate the 11.85%gd. This loan was re-negotiated with
monthly repayments of $3,566,971 up to 8years.

xiv) The 9.5% JN loans were used to purchase motor leshic

xv) The 9.5% JN loans were used to purchase motor leshic

xvi) The 9.5% JN loans were used to purchase motor leshic

xvii) This balance is comprised of:

(@) 7.75% term loan of $258,800,000 used to refirdd® Dollar credit facilities and higher
interest term facilities and is re-payable at a thiyrinstallment of $4,001,553.
(b) revolving line of credit of $41,200,000 to providerking capital support at an interest
rate of 7.75% per annum.
xviii) This is an amortizing term loan used fenovation and capital expenditure for Sampars
stores and information technology capital proje€te loan is repayable up to 9 years with

a monthly installment of $1,521,518.

The loans are secured by registered charges oaeestate and motor vehicles owned by DTCL,
guarantees of certain shareholders, shares oftsaysiinvestments and cash deposits.
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25. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

No borrowings or loans were in default during thexigd that would permit any lender to demand
accelerated repayment

xix) LEASE LIABILITY

Right-of-use Assets, blended principal and intepastiments (rent payments) are made monthly in
the amount of $14,157,887 interest is charged2&%6, maturing in 2039.

Principal amounts payable:
-Current portion $ 70,601,400
-Long-term $1,000,272,106
$1,070,873,506

Principal repayments for each of the next five gear

2020 $ 70,601,400
2021 $ 75,893,561
2022 $ 81,582,413
2023 $ 66,487,807

2024-2039 $776,232,324
26. BANK OVERDRAFT

As at 31 December 2019, the company had no barduatm an overdrawn position.

27. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares Ordinary shares
$
$'000
Issued and fully paid:
2,733,360,670 140,044

At 31 December 2019

The Board of Directors met in November 2019 andaygd the payment of a dividend of $0.01 per
share to shareholders on record as at 29 Novenili®. Zhe payment was made in December 2019.
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28. OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

The following items have been charged/(receivedarriving at operating profit before taxation:

The Group The Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Auditors’ remuneration 7,882 6,628 4,200 3,700
Directors’ emoluments:
Fees 1,275 1,170 780 360
Management remuneration 85,445 61,482 48,927 36,687
Bad debts written off 29,335 12,701 29,335 6,846
Management fees to - (5,500) - (5,500)
Company
Inventory written off during the yea 3,339 - 3,339 -
Depreciation 67,088 61,575 51,967 49,498
Depreciation- right of issue 96,618 - 90,918 -
Staff costs (including management
remuneration) 799,031 622,971 668,164 409,814

29. CAPITAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital Management:

The Group defines capital as equity and total lwings. The Group manages its capital, of $1.9
Billion to support and be responsive to opportasitior its current growth strategy and expansion
plans and to maintain its normal operations andamencompliant with various covenants and

restrictive rules and regulations of the industmg ghe financial environment in which it operates.

Capital Management Strategies

The Group’s objectives when managing capital asafeguard the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern in order to provide specific hurdieirns for its shareholders and benefits for othe
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capitalcstire to reduce the cost of capital as well astmee
externally imposed capital requirements. The Baafrdirectors monitors the return on capital,
which the Group defines as net operating incomaldd/by total shareholders’ equity.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Groupnitors capital based on the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided dppital as defined above. Total borrowing is
calculated as current and non-current borrowings,slaown in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Capital is calculated as equity shown in the statement of financial posititus p
total borrowings. The management of the Companyanesndeliberate in the way it funds its growth
strategy and given the present economic environmesthe general reduction in the cost of capital
in the market; management continues to adjust ntgbts from a bullet repayment structure to that
of amortization and lengthening of tenors.
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29. CAPITAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

During 2019, the Group’s strategy, which was imgiple unchanged from 2018, was to maintain
the gearing ratio below 100%. The gearing ratio3labecember 2019 and 31 December 2018 were

as follows:
The Group The Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
‘000 $'000 '000 $000
Total borrowings (excluding lease
liability) 2,389,767 1,668,710 2,366,083 1,661,280
Capital and borrowings 3,565,642 2,566,980 3,577,003 2,644,491
Gearing ratio 67% 65% 66% 63%

The Company continues to use debt financing to mjita operations. There have been no significant
changes to the Group’s overall approach to capitalagement during the year.

Risk Management:

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety afaincial risks: market risk (currency risk, fair wal
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate riskl gmice risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Thisote
presents information about the Group’s exposureatth of the above risks as well as its objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managikg r

The Directors have overall responsibility for thetadlishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. They are responsible for ldpirgy and monitoring the Group’s risk
management policies and through training to devetapdards and procedures and a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all emy#es understand their roles and obligations.

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has also established an tAQdmmittee to assist in managing the Group’s
risk profile. This Committee oversees how manageémamnitors compliance with the Group’s risk
management policies and reviews the adequacy afgkenanagement framework. This committee is
also assisted by Internal Audit that reports to Aluelit Committee after it undertakes regular and ad
hoc reviews of risk management controls and pro@esgespecially over inventories and receivables.

a) Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, wisithe risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becsse of changes in market prices. Market risks
principally arise from changes in foreign curreesghange rates, interest rates and commodity
prices. The objective of market risk managemeitd imanage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable limits while optimizing returfiis risk is principally monitored by the
finance director, along with guidelines from thealmbof directors.
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29. CAPITAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (continued)
a) Market risk (continued)

There has been no change to the Group’s exposunarket risk or how it manages and measures
this risk.

i.  Commodity Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a finahdrestrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices, whether those changesareed by factors specific to the
individual instrument or its issuer or factors affeg all instruments traded in the market.

The Company is exposed to price risk principalliatieg to the importation of rice. The

Company enters into commodity contracts in respgctthe anticipated future usage

requirements and the price on imported rice iskedcand purchased in advance, when
necessary, if the price on the international margeincreasing. This strategy is used to
mitigate this risk.

ii. Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value otuie cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchartgs.ra

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk, tduBuctuations in exchange rates on
transactions and balances that are denominategriancies other than the Jamaican dollar.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange riskjrgriprimarily with respect to the US
dollar, from commercial transactions such as theoirtation and sale of bulk rice that
represents a significant percentage of the Growupsrall purchase figure. To manage
currency risk on imported rice, the Group entets short and medium-term arrangements
with millers and producers at agreed terms primanilproducing countries.
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29. CAPITAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(@) Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency bank accounts are maintainedvaidewhich will meet foreign currency
obligations and management also has access togaar¢breign currencies at market or close
to market rates thereby reducing or mitigating@reup’s exposure to sudden exchange rate
fluctuations. The Group manages its foreign excbaigk by ensuring that the net exposure
in foreign assets and liabilities is kept to anegtable level by closely monitoring currency
positions. The Group further manages this risk laximizing foreign currency earnings and
holding foreign currency balances.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net foreigreocy liabilities of US$1.7 Million
(2018-US$1.6 Million) which were subject to foreigrchange rate changes as follows:

Concentrations of currency risks

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
US$‘000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Foreign currency financial assets:
Cash equivalents and investments 413 101 356 101
Foreign currency financial liabilities:
Payables and accruals (2,284) (953) (2,111) (953)
Borrowings - (792) - (792)

(2,284) (1,745) (2,111) (1,745)
Total net foreign currency liabilities (1,870) (1,644) (1,755) (1,644)

A significant portion of the Group’s purchases ad®a using United States (US) dollars. The Group
hedges against the movement in the United Statés goincipally by holding cash resources in
that currency, prompt payment, when necessaryrefgn currency bills as they become due along

with maximizing efforts to earn foreign currency impovating marketing on-line to the Jamaican
Diaspora community.

In accordance with accounting policies applied &iastly, exchange gains and losses are
recognized in the income statement when incurred.

2019 2018
33 o]

31 December 201®xchange rate 1US$ 132.57 126.00
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29. CAPITAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(@)

Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis represents the impacthenprofit or loss due to the movement in the US
dollar exchange rate relative to the Jamaican dollgh other variables remaining constant.

Due to the nature of the Group’s operations and weey short term nature of balances

denominated in currencies other than the Jamaio#dardin the opinion of management, there
should be no material impact on the results of@neup’s operations as a result of changes in
foreign currency rates as sudden changes are promagjusted in the selling prices of the

Group’s imported products, especially bulk rice ard kidney beans that form a significant
percentage of the Group’s overall purchases.

A 5% (2018-5%) weakening of the Jamaican dollathwail other variables remaining constant,
in particular interest rates, would result in aslag approximately $12.4 Million (2018 - $10.3
Million) to the Groupif all outstanding foreign liabilities are settlatithe depreciated rate of the
Jamaican dollar. A 5% appreciation of the Jamamaltar under similar circumstances would
result in a profit of $12.4 Million (2018- $10.3Mdn).

iii. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vatrefuture cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate due to changes in market interesesaFloating rate instruments expose the
Group to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixeelast rate instruments expose the Group to
fair value interest risk.

The Group invests excess cash in short-term depasdl maintains interest-earning bank
accounts with licensed and reputable financialitutsbns. Short-term deposits are invested
for periods of three (3) months or less at fixeksaand are not affected by fluctuations in
market interest rates up to the date of maturityc&interest rates on the Group’s short-term
deposits are fixed up to maturity and interest edrinom the Group’s interest-earning bank
accounts is immaterial, management is of the opitiere would be no material impact on
the results of the Group’s operations as a resdluctuations in interest rates.
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29. CAPITAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(&) Market risk (continued)
iii. Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group incurs interest on its borrowings. Thaeseowings are at fixed rates and expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Intemrasge fluctuations are not expected to have a
material effect on the net results or shareholdegsiity. The Group reviews its interest rate
exposure arising from borrowings on an ongoingdaaking into consideration the options
of refinancing, renewal of existing positions arite@ative financing. Management, as a
policy, obtains fixed-rate loans when interestgatee expected to rise and floating rate loans
when interest rates are expected to fall but gdlgesvoids variable-rate borrowing
instruments.

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from longrtdrorrowings and available-for-sale debt
instruments. The sensitivity of the profit or lasghe effect of the assumed changes in the
interest rates on profit before taxation basedloatihg rate borrowing and available-for-
sale debt instruments.

The Group does not have any significant exposurdldating rate borrowings or on
investments because the majority of the financistruments carry fixed rates of interest to
maturity.
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29. CAPITAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party, which inbds customers, clients and counterparties, to a
financial instrument will fail to discharge an ajdiion and cause the other party to incur a

financial loss. Credit risk is an important finaadcrisk for the Group’s business, and therefore

management meticulously manages the Group’s expdsuhis risk.

The Group faces credit risk in respect of investnaetivities and its receivables from customers.

Cash, deposits and investments

Credit risk for cash, deposits and investments @&aged by investing in mainly liquid
securities and maintaining these balances witmdied financial institutions considered to
be reputable and stable. Accordingly, managemees dot expect any counterparty to fail
to meet its obligations. The Finance Director, glovith the Board of Directors, performs
monthly reviews of the investments and securitielsl las a part of their assessment of the
Group’s credit risk.

The maximum credit risk faced by the Group is thialtof these balances reflected in the
financial statements. No provision for impairmenteemed necessary.

Receivables

Credit risk for receivables is mitigated by stringeredit reviews and approval of limits to
customers as well as regular credit evaluation wdtamers. Appropriate credit checks,
references and analyses are undertaken in oragesess customers’ credit risk profile prior
to offering new credit or increasing existing cteldnits. Many of the customers who are
experiencing cash flow difficulties and are excegdiheir credit limits are identified, and
the appropriate actions are taken. Key Performdndecators are reviewed regularly,
including cash collected, average debt collecti@miqnl, percentage of customers with
overdue balances and debts deemed uncollectibdelit@imits for all customers inclusive of
payment history and risk profile are reviewed atiguzefore the renewal of credit facilities.
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29. CAPITAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Creditrisk (continued)

Receivables (continued)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables that are gastbut not impaired

Trade receivables that are less than 90 days pasti not considered impaired. As of 31
December 2019, trade receivables of $327,835 (201#365,365) were reviewed for
impairment and a provision of $32,812 (2018 - $81)lwas considered necessary.

Management continues to critically review this piosi as they are aware that many of their
customers who are retailers and wholesalers areeriexging difficult economic
circumstances. The ageing analysis of these texvables is as follows:

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Past due 31 to 60 days 157,611 179,189 110,498 110,853
Past due 61 to 90 days 67,653 52,462 63,225 35,608
Past due over 90 days 102,571 51,123 92,594 42,177
327,835 365,365 266,316 188,638

Management does not consider that any additioraligion is required for long outstanding
balances due to the Group or Company, especialsetiover 90 days as all doubtful balances
were written off during the year.

Exposure to credit risk for trade receivables

The following table summarizes the Group and Comgjgarcredit exposure for trade
receivables at their carrying amounts, as categadiy customer sector.

The Group The Company

2019 2018 2019 2018
$000 $000 $000 $000
Supermarket chains 174,489 157,066 174,489 157,066
Wholesale and retail distributors 655,532 622,827 600,164 540,236
Government entities 18,069 16,265 18,069 16,265
Manufactures 77,600 92,929 - -
Other 34,236 25,282 28,086 25,282
959,926 914,369 820,808 738,849
Overseas 6,926 6,233 6,926 6,233
Total (see note 18) 966,852 920,602 827,734 745,082

Overseas customers mainly relate to customerseituttited States and the United Kingdom
and represent approximately 0.72% (2018 - 0.84%heftotal balance. The currencies of
these countries are considered stable and condystgpreciate against the Jamaican dollar,
and no risk of any significant loss is anticipaitedhis category of overseas customers.

There is no change, from the prior, in the Grougzosure to credit risk or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risk.
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29. CAPITAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

(€)

Credit risk (continued)
iii. Total exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represémes maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reportingedaas $2.9 Billion (2018- $1.7 Billion)
representing the balances as at 31 December 201%af&h and short-term deposits,
investments and receivables as reported in therséait of financial position of the Group.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will ntie able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Group manages its liquidity risk bgintaining an appropriate level of resources in
liquid or near liquid form to meet its liabilitiewhen due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable lossessking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group’s liquidity management process, as chwig within the Group and monitored by the
Finance Director and Board of Directors, includes:

I.  Monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on an gming basis. This incorporates an
assessment of expected cash flows and the avayatiilhigh grade collateral which could
be used to secure funding if required.

ii. Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assttat can easily be liquidated as protection
against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow.

iii. Maintaining committed lines of credit.

iv. Managing the concentration and profile of debt ma&s while optimizing cash returns on
investments.

At 31 December 2019, the Company’'s three (3) ldrgaedit suppliers amounted to
approximately 41% (2018 - 20%) of the total anruaichases of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019. Management continues to tryversify the base of its credit suppliers on a
regional basis as well as within intra-geographieaiions within the markets in which the
Company’s major suppliers operate. In addition,@loenpany’s supply chain has been expanded
through forging of a new relationship with a majaiernational commodity broker who helps to
reduce the risk of depending on a few major supglie

The Group also has access to lines of securedtdedacilitate payments to major suppliers
according to agreed credit terms should the Grawgmg time have insufficient cash resources to
settle its obligations as they fall due.
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29. CAPITAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)
Undiscounted contractual cash flows of financial &bilities

The Group’s financial liabilities comprise long+tetoans, payables and accruals, based on undigzbunt
contractual payments which are due as follows:
Maturity Profile of the Group

2019
Within Within Over
1 year 1to 5 years 5 years
2019 2019 2019
$'000 $'000 $'000
Long-term loans 122,448 1,072,896 1,728,980
Lease liability 70,601 290,452 709,745
Short term loans 536,316 536,316 -
Payables and accrual 976,846 - -
Total 1,706,211 1,899,644 2,438,725
Maturity Profile of the Group
2018
Within Within Over
1 vear 11o Syears Syears
2018 2018 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000
Long-term loans 67,105 321,654 543,535
Short term loans 736,416 736,416 -
Payables and accrual 1,149,544 - =
Total 1,953,065 1,058,070 543,535
Maturity Profile of the Company
2019
Within Within Over
1 year 1 to Syears 5 years
2018 2018 2018
$'000 $'000 '000
Long-term loans 119,629 1,039,396 1,646,476
Lease liability 66,602 333,010 574,806
Short term loans 535,000 535,000 -
Payables and accrua 902,850 - =
Total 1,624,081 1,907,406 2,221,282
Maturity Profile of the Company
2018
Within Within Over
1 year 1 to Syears 5 years
2017 2017 2017
'000 $000 $'000
Long-term loans 67,105 857,760 -

Short term loans 736,416 736,416 -
Payables and accrual 1,090,545 - =
Total 1,894,066 857,760 -
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29. CAPITAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Assets available to cover financial liabilitieslumabe cash, short term deposits and available-fier-sa
investments.

Off-balance sheet items — Commitments

() The Company has registered bills of sale over estdte and motor vehicles along with
demand debentures to cover asset amounting tdB#ilioh.

(i The Group has no significant capital commitmengs lave been authorized at 31 December
20109.

(y The Group has long term obligations under long teperating leases for premises. See note
25, borrowings for the future liability of minimulaase payments.

(d) Reputational Risk

The Group is engaged in a business that principlidlyibutes basic food items and flavours to
the general consuming population, and its reputasocritical within the market place. The
Group’s management endeavours at all times to h&attand adopt international best
practices, especially with regard to bulk frozerateeand other bulk commodities such as rice

and red kidney beans.

The Group also ensures that the necessary sasttmgards are maintained to guarantee that
regular audits by the Bureau of Standards are safidey undertaken. In addition, customer
audits are undertaken to facilitate continuous owpment and efficient customer delivery

services.

Customer complaints are promptly and properly itigated and appropriately assessed, and
transparency is maintained; where necessary custasne promptly compensated if they have
suffered a loss. Management considers the Growgpstation secured as they ensure that
events that may damage its reputation are immdgiateestigated. The appropriate action

taken to deal with the matter in a manner thasBasi the complainant.
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30. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be receiveddlth an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants@imeasurement date. Financial instruments that,
subsequent to initial recognition, are measurei@iatvalue are grouped into level 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observablee Tair value of a liability reflects its non-
performance risk.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derinad fjuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical instruments. The fair value of finealanstruments traded in active markets is based o
guoted market prices at the yearend, 31 DecemhbEd. 28 market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available fromexchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service or regulatory agency and those prices septeactual and frequently occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quotadteh price used for financial assets is the ctirren
bid price.

At 31 December 2019, these instruments are quatedsiment securities (Note 20) which are
grouped in level 1.

At the reporting date, the Company’s financial tss@d liabilities were reported at fair valuegj an
there was no necessity to estimate values usingegptevalue or other estimation and valuation
techniques based on market conditions existingeastatement of financial position date.

The Group has no financial assets grouped in l8els
The following methods and assumptions have beeth insgetermining fair values:

i. The face value, less any estimated credit aajeists for financial assets and liabilities with a
maturity of less than one year, are estimated pyvagmate their fair values. These assets and
liabilities include cash and bank balances, sherintinvestments, trade receivables and
payables.

ii. The carrying values of long term loans appnoate their fair values, as these loans are carried
at an amortised cost reflecting their contractidiigations and the interest rates reflective of
current market rates for similar transactions.
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31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In the normal course of business, the Group isestibp various claims, disputes and legal procesdin
Provision is made for such matters when, in thaiopiof management and its professional advisbis, i
probable that the Group will make a payment, aecathount can be reasonably estimated.

l. The Group and Company'’s attorneys that routinetyoacbehalf of the Group, by letter dated 12
February 2020, reported with regards to the Conipgmar ended 31 December 2019, as follows:

They were not aware of any judgment or settlemeanyg actual pending or threatened litigation
or claim, nor of any outstanding, actual, pendinthoeatened litigation

They were not aware of any outstanding tax or otii@ims against the Company whether
pending or threatened nor are they aware of argr atimtingent liability against the Company.
They were not aware of any guarantees of indebgsdiwe others made by the Company, not
publicly disclosed

They hold no trust monies on behalf of the Company

[I. Management reported that the Company had no odistasignificant capital commitments in
respect of projects being undertaken, nor was taeyeoff-balance sheet transactions as at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2018 - $NIL).

lll.  As at 31 December 2019, as far as the Board otre of the Company are aware, there were
no significant legal claims threatened againsGbmpany.

IV.As at 31 December 2019, under the 2016 Income(Aamended) Act, as a result of the listing of
both DTCL and its subsidiary, CFFL, on the Junicarkét of the Jamaican Stock Exchange, The
Group has potential contingent liabilities of apgneately $270 Million in regards to income tax
remissions.

32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

At 31 December 2019, to the best of managementsviedge and belief, they were not aware of any
events that occurred after the statement of firdupasition date and through to the date of approfva
these financial statements that would require aujeist to or disclosure in the aforementioned fimgnc
statements. Also, they were not aware of any ewemhatter, although not affecting such financial
statements or disclosures, have caused or arg likehuse any material change, adverse or othesrimis
the financial position or results of operationshef Company.



